
CORRECTED AND APPROVED                  CORRECTED AND APPROVED 

                    ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 1 

 MINUTES 
 

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council 
Transportation Division 

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMMING STUDY GROUP 
Friday, January 9, 2009 

Kent County Road Commission      1500 Scribner NW 
 
Conners, Chair of the TPSG Committee, called the meeting to order at 9:33 am. 

 
I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Voting Members Present 
 
Scott Conners (Chair)   City of Walker 
Roger Belknap     KCRC 
Sandra M. Cornell-Howe    MDOT 
Rick DeVries      City of Grand Rapids 
Bill Dooley      City of Wyoming 
Ken Feldt      City of East Grand Rapids 
Russ Henckel Proxy for   City of Wyoming 
   Tim Cochran   City of Wyoming   
Jan Hoekstra        The Rapid 
Brett Laughlin     OCRC 
D. Dale Mohr      Georgetown Township 
Terry Schweitzer     City of Kentwood 
Dan Strikwerda     City of Hudsonville 
Steve Warren     KCRC 
 
Staff and Non-Voting Guests Present 
 
Jerry Alkema      Allendale Charter Township 
Mike Brameijer     GVMC Staff 
Andrea Dewey     GVMC Staff 
Andrea Faber     GVMC Staff 
Wayne Harrall     Kent County Road Commission 
Abed Itani      GVMC Staff 
Dennis Kent      MDOT 
Sarah Koepke     FHWA 
Darrell Robinson     GVMC Staff 
Jim Snell      GVMC Staff  
George Yang      GVMC Staff 
Mike Zonyk       GVMC Staff 
 
 



CORRECTED AND APPROVED                  CORRECTED AND APPROVED 

                    ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 2 

Voting Members Not Present 
 
Sandy Ayers      Village of Caledonia 
Mike Berrevoets     City of Cedar Springs (FTCH) 
Mike Bouwkamp     City of Rockford 
Christine Burns     City of Cedar Springs 
Patrick Bush        City of Grand Rapids 
Ron Carr      City of Grandville 
Tim Cochran      City of Wyoming 
Sharon DeLange     Village of Sparta 

 Dan DesJarden     City of Lowell      
 Jerry Hall      City of Cedar Springs 
 Roy Hawkins      GRFIA 
 Steve Peterson     Cascade Township 
 Jared Rodriguez     GR Chamber 
 Vicki Weerstra     MDOT 
  
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Conners entertained a motion to approve of the December 12, 2008 Transportation 
Programming Study Group Meeting Minutes. 
 
MOTION by Warren, SUPPORT by DeVries, to approve the December 12, 2008 
Transportation Programming Study Group Meeting Minutes. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 

III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

None 
 

IV. FY2012-2013 STP-U AND EDF-C TIP PROGRAMMING 
 

Itani began the discussion by providing a recap of what the Committee 
accomplished at the December 12, 2008 meeting. Itani stated that that meeting 
ended with the discussion on how to spend the remaining 324,000 in STP-U funding 
for FY2011 being tabled. Conners suggested that the Committee deviate from the 
agenda and discuss this remaining funding. Cornell-Howe provided the Committee 
with an update on funding. 
 
Itani asked the Committee for a recommendation to affirm the existing projects in 
the FY2010 and FY2011 TIP and move to develop FY2012 and FY2013 in the TIP. 
Robinson handed out the FY2010 and FY2011 project list to the Committee. 
Discussion, comments, and questions ensued.  
 
Conners entertained a motion to approve the FY2010 and FY2011 STP-U and EDF-
C project lists in the TIP so that the Committee could move on to working on 



CORRECTED AND APPROVED                  CORRECTED AND APPROVED 

                    ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 3 

FY2012 and FY2013. 
 
MOTION by DeVries, SUPPORT by Dooley, to approve the project lists for  
STP-U and EDF-C funding in the FY2010 and FY2011 TIP, and for the 
Committee to move on to discuss STP-U and EDF-C projects for FY2012 and 
FY2013. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
Conners asked the Committee to begin looking at the next two years in the TIP 
(FY2012 and FY2013). Referencing a PowerPoint presentation, Warren began the 
discussion by giving the Committee a summary of the percentage of available 
funding the KCRC has received from 1995-2007 in comparison to the amount of 
roads the KCRC is responsible for. He also included a list detailing the amount of 
funding various jurisdictions had received over the same time period. Making a case 
for jurisdictional equity, Warren stated that, based on the number of roads the 
KCRC is responsible for, they should receive at least 35% of the available funding. 
Discussion ensued.  Itani stated that he does look at population as a factor in 
determining funding, not just VMT.  
 
Conners suggested that the Committee members present go around the table and 
list their top projects included on Item IV: Attachment A. 
 
Laughlin, Schweitzer, Feldt, DeVries, Strikwerda, Dooley and Henckel, and Conners 
stated their top priority projects to the Committee. Kent stated that MDOT was going 
to discuss their projects down the line. Itani said that he would take MDOT’s 5-year 
plan with the intent of rolling it into the TIP. Robinson created a new spreadsheet 
that included only the top priorities of these jurisdictions. 
 
Dooley stated that he wanted to see a process for determining projects that was 
more objective than subjective. Itani said that he appreciated the work that Warren 
had done in determining how well every jurisdiction had faired in terms of funding 
over the last several years and that, over the long term, he is a believer in being 
cognoscente of where the funding is going. However, he also clarified that the 
concept of jurisdictional equity is against the beliefs of the MPO. The policy is that 
the Committee needs to look at the system as a whole and come up with a strategy 
to improve it. He stated that if the KCRC could come up with a way to convince the 
Committee to give them a certain percentage of the funding, then so be it, but the 
MPO won’t endorse set-asides because, over time, it hurts the smaller communities. 
The Committee can also elect to give any entity more than their fair share, as long 
as the projects are listed on the deficiency list. Conners suggested using 
jurisdictional equity as only a guiding principle over time. Warren clarified that he 
wasn’t asking for a sub-allocation and that everyone was looking for projects that 
were justifiable. He simply wanted jurisdictional equity to be considered for the 
development of this TIP. 
 
The Committee broke for a recess from 10:45 to 11:00. 
 



CORRECTED AND APPROVED                  CORRECTED AND APPROVED 

                    ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 4 

Itani provided the Committee with an update on the status of the proposed stimulus 
package. He stated that the State will probably hire consultants to help them 
manage the process and that all of the money received will go through the STP 
formula. Koepke said that the Committee can start doing public involvement; 
however, they can’t act on any projects at the policy level until the bill is actually 
passed. Itani stated that the Committee may need to repeat the TPSG process to 
select projects and that he may reconvene the group to discuss how to distribute the 
stimulus money in the near future. Discussion ensued. 
 
The Committee broke for lunch from 11:30 to 12:00. 
 
Robinson referenced a spreadsheet that included between one and three top 
priorities for each jurisdiction for STP-U funding. For FY2012, Robinson stated that 
they were over 5.6 million with an 80/20 match for every project and $3.8 million 
over with a 70/30 match for every project. Itani asked the Committee to decide 
whether they wanted to use a 70/30 match or an 80/20 match. The Committee 
agreed to move forward with the 70/30 match. Conners volunteered to move the 
City of Walker’s Elmridge project to FY2013, which left FY2012 overprogrammed by 
approximately $3 million dollars. Approximately $1.7 million dollars were available 
for programming in FY2013. Robinson suggested that the Committee look at the 
City of Kentwood’s Forest Hills Avenue project. Schweitzer said that the project 
could be split into two years. The north half of the project needed to happen first, 
and would cost approximately $2.1 million. Itani suggested that, as a strategy, the 
Committee move most resurfacing projects to FY2013 so that once the stimulus 
package is received, those projects can move forward. Projects left unfunded at the 
end of the meeting would then receive priority when the stimulus package was 
received. Warren volunteered to move the KCRC’s Patterson project to FY2013 with 
the hope of advance constructing or receiving stimulus funding. With this move, the 
FY2013 TIP was overprogrammed in STP-U funding by $36,000. Robinson stated 
that he would readjust the matches by a small percentage in order to make the 
FY2013 TIP financially constrained. 
 
Dooley stated that he wanted to see the FY2012 list again, since there might be 
projects on the list that he disagreed with. Dooley expressed his frustration that a 
number of smaller communities have already received many major projects and 
questioned whether they should be asking for major projects over the next four-year 
period. Itani stated that if projects are deficient, then they should be on the list. 
Warren brought up jurisdictional equity and suggested that smaller communities only 
receive one or two projects per TIP. Strikwerda stated that while Hudsonville is a 
small community, they are currently in a “hot spot” for construction with the widening 
of 32

ND
 Avenue at the 1-196 interchange and a new Meijers. He volunteered to take 

the City of Hudsonville’s 36
th
 Avenue project off the list, but also stated that smaller 

communities cannot always be the donor communities. Itani stated that Strikwerda 
may be able to use stimulus money for his project. Discussion ensued.  
 
Schweitzer stated that if he received funding for the north half of the Forest Hills 



CORRECTED AND APPROVED                  CORRECTED AND APPROVED 

                    ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 5 

Avenue project, but not for the south half, the numbers for FY2012 would be closer 
to where they needed to be. Schweitzer stated that he would leave the south half of 
the project for the stimulus package. Itani suggested that the Committee move 
anything overprogrammed to FY2013 and play with the match. That way, if there is 
stimulus money available, the projects will already be in the TIP. The match will be 
adjusted to fit all of the projects. For FY2012, Itani suggested keeping the match at 
70/30. 
 
The Committee decided to remove the Ottawa County Road Commission’s Bauer 
Road Project and move the 36

th
 Street Project to FY2012. Conners added that 

Wyoming hasn’t had a STP-U project in three years and that it would be worth 
adding another project for them to FY2013.  
 
Dooley stated that he disagreed with some projects on the FY2013 list and said that 
some jurisdictions are asking for more than what is fair. He thought that the City of 
Walker had received a disproportionate amount of funding in recent years. Dooley 
asked Conners to postpone his project or put it on an illustrative list. Conners stated 
that he would do so if the KCRC agreed that he should, but also said that regional 
equity can’t be made up all at once. Conners agreed to move the Elmridge project to 
an alternate list to help the City of Wyoming make up the ground they needed.  
 
Itani suggested that the funding for the Ottawa County Road Commission be 
reduced by $300,000, and the funding for the City of Walker be reduced by 
$270,000. This would hit all of the targets for that year. Laughlin stated that he 
would dispute this until the Committee sets a formula and approves it. Itani 
explained his reasoning and a formula he had used to arrive at that amount. He 
stated that if the Committee is shooting for jurisdictional equity, then based on the 
population of Ottawa County, that is where the cut should be. Conners stated that 
he would rather have his project in the TIP with less federal funding than have it not 
be there at all. Itani suggested that the Committee move on to discuss EDF-C 
funding. 
 
Robinson described two EDF-C projects for the KCRC. Warren stated that he was 
going to delete the 76

th
 Street Project and add in a project on Forest Hills Avenue 

that qualifies for EDF-C in FY2012. He stated that the KCRC would also work on 
completing a portion of their Northland Drive project in FY2012. The total amount 
completed would be dependent on available funding. The remaining portion of the 
Northland Drive project would be completed in FY2013.  
 
Returning to STP-U funding, the KCRC volunteered to take their Coit project off the 
list for FY2013, and Walker agreed to reduce the funding for the Elmridge project. 
This left $670,000 in available STP-U funds for FY2013. The Committee selected a 
project from the City of Wyoming to utilize these funds. 
Conners entertained a motion to approve of the FY2012 and FY2013 STP-U and 
EDF-C projects for the TIP.  
 



CORRECTED AND APPROVED                  CORRECTED AND APPROVED 

                    ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 6 

MOTION by Warren, SUPPORT by Dooley, to approve the FY2012 and FY2013 
STP-U projects selected by the Committee for the TIP, to remove the 76

th
 

Street project in FY2011, and to approve the KCRC’s EDF-C projects on Forest 
Hills Avenue and Northland Drive for FY2012 and FY2013. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY.      
 
Itani noted that the planning studies were not included in the TIP. The cost for the 
planning studies would be $250,000.  
 
Conners entertained a motion to amend the planning studies into the FY2012 and 
FY2013 TIP.  
 
MOTION by Schweitzer, SUPPORT by Feldt, to amend the planning studies 
into the FY2012 and FY2013 TIP. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
Itani stated that he would develop a population and VMT percentage calculation that 
the Committee can use in the future to determine appropriate funding percentages 
per jurisdiction. This would give the Committee a number to shoot for when 
developing future TIPs. Warren stated that population, lane mileage, and VMT are 
three measures to look at when determining projects. He stated that for the next 
TIP, the Committee should consider the projects that are the most regionally 
significant. Discussion ensued.  
 
Itani asked the Committee if they wanted to take the projects not funded in the next 
TIP and add them to an illustrative list. Dooley suggested that the Committee add all 
of the unfunded projects to an illustrative list. Conners stated that additional projects 
may need to be added based on the stimulus package.  
 
Conners entertained a motion to list all unfunded projects in an illustrative list for 
FY2014 for EDF-C and STP-U funding.  
 
MOTION by Dooley, SUPPORT by Feldt, to add all currently funded projects to 
an illustrative list for FY2014 for STP-U and EDF-C funding, with the addition 
of the City of Wyoming’s 44

th
 Street Project. MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY.     
   

V. OTHER BUSINESS 
None 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Conners adjourned the January 9, 2009 TPSG meeting at 2:04 pm.  
 


